Answers

to the Questions related to the open and confidential design competition ‘Hotel on Clark Ádám tér’

I. The answers given here form part of the Tender Documentation and should be interpreted in conjunction with that.

II. During its meeting held on the 26th of July the Evaluation Committee amended the some points of the Tender Invitation as follows:

1.6.
The competition’s schedule:

f) Results of the competition announced on:
22 October 2006
1.13.
Publicly announcing and presenting the results of the competition.
Pursuant to the decision of the Evaluation Committee the issuer announces the results of the design competition by the 22nd of October 2007.

1.14.
Conditions for further planning
According to the contract the issuer expects meeting the following planning deadlines:

22 December 2007

Submitting the plan for approval

III. The bidders are hereby informed that the problem indicated by many on phone, according to which some of the attached dwg files could not be opened, has been corrected. This way the latest dxf files uploaded can be used for the purpose of the competition with Archicad and Autocad.

Answers

1. What ideas are included in the Master Plan of the City of Budapest and in District Master Plan for the district? What tender invitations does it contain?
Having regards to the fact that the property is unique and emphatic role in respect of cityscape, theoretically it is possible to be granted the following ratios within the framework of BVKSZ (Budapest City Regulation and Development Rules)  and in compliance with the requirements put forth therein:

a. building density: 80% (if the conditions are met 100% on the ground floor and on the first floor)

b. floor area ratio: 5.5 (if the conditions are met: 6.0)

c. fitting: KSZT (District Regulation Plan)  guidelines are applicable to fitting.
The lecture delivered by Körmendy Imre on the subject is attached as an appendix in order to help the interpretation of the concept.

2. Will the architectural designs and planning documents prepared for the area so far and the minutes of the design council be made public? Is there any way to look at these?
No, there is no way to look at these.

3. Will a digital dwg drawing of the roundabout and its vicinity become available later in order to find a solution for vehicle entry and parking? Would the client prefer vehicle access from the roundabout or from Fő utca?
A digital drawing of the roundabout and its vicinity is not necessary, because the surroundings must be dealt with on the level of ideas only. For traffic management reasons vehicle access can only be made from Fő utca.

4. The tender invitation does not mention the international classification of the hotel. Does the developer plan to build a four-star or a five-star hotel?
Because of her nature Hotel Boutique has no star classification. In terms of quality she will definitely be five-star or above.

5. In addition to the services mentioned in the tender invitation does the wellness section include saunas (Finnish/bio/infra), perhaps steam bath, Jacuzzi, salt chamber, cold water pool and recreational area for taking a rest between services?

The invitation is quite clear on wellness. This is not a wellness hotel; she merely provides some services for conditioning and refreshment. Outside visitors may have access to the below ground level services through the reception desk, however, not by way of dedicated vertical communication.

6. Are the towels provided for the guests in the prestigious lobby of the wellness section, or are they to be brought down from the rooms? Is there room for a wellness cafeteria in this space?
See the answer given to Question 5.

7. What machines can be found in the fitness room? What does the issuer mean by “basic fitness”? Does it pertain to cardio-machines or training equipment as well?
See the answer given to Question 5.

8. Is the wellness section reserved for hotel guests only, or would it also be open to outside visitors?

See the answer given to Question 5.

9. Can hotel guests access the wellness level directly from their rooms by elevator and stairs or through the ground level lobby? Is it necessary to separate the walkways for “robed guests” and the outside visitors of the upper level restaurant? A separate elevator?
See the answer given to Question 5.

10. Can the level of “restobar” on the ground level be split with a gallery and made to accommodate 80 guests this way as well?

This has to be decided by the bidder.

11. Are the ground-floor shops (souvenir and tobacco) catering to hotel gusts only or they have external customers are well? What functions are planned for these shops? Will they be run by the hotel or contracted? Do they need other auxiliary rooms (storage space, washroom, etc.)?
To be decided by planner. According to the issuer's ideas these ground level premises will be managed by the tenants and they will not only serve hotel guests.

12. Does the investor plan to have a Guest Office within the hotel where the Internet can be accessed, printing and scanning, etc. are available using the hotel’s computers?

Yes, with a floor space not exceeding 6 or 7 square meters in a way that services could be easily controlled by the reception.

13. The 28 m2 room units in the tender invitation suggest that the investor does not plan to have single-bed rooms at all within the building. Is that correct?

According to generally accepted hotel standards there is no “single-bed” room any more. Lone guests are also given “double room”.
14. With respect to the furnishing of the double-bed rooms referred to in the invitation we are seeking answers to the following questions:

a. The bathroom will have one or two basins?

b. The bathrooms have bathtubs or showers? If both, in what proportion?
c. What is the room furnishing? What dimensions are to be used for the calculations (TV, radio, desk, bed, minibar, table, armchair, etc.)?
The bathrooms shall have one washbasin and a bathtub with shower glass. In accord with international boutique hotel features.
15. Which requirements are “misprinted” in Section 2.1 of the tender invitation?

The word ‘misprint’ is a misprint. Correctly it is ‘printed’.

16. Are rooms to be made for people with disabilities? If so, how many?
Yes, one room should be designed for people with moving impairments and the access to the room must also be made free of obstacles.

17. Do we have to design standard rooms only or superior rooms as well? If so, how many? 
All rooms are to be designed in standard high-quality.

18. Is it necessary to plane for smoking rooms?

This is a non-smoking hotel.

19. Is it necessary to plan a conference hall?

Optional: if floor space figures allow, it is an asset. Recommended to locate it below ground level.

20. Is there any tender competition or registration fee?

See Section 1.7 of the tender document (there is not).
21. According to Annex 2 of the Master Plan for the City of Budapest the property is under archaeological protection. Has there been any archaeological excavation on the said property? Will there be such an obligation and could the implementation of the project be affected by the potential findings?
The property was probed for archaeological excavation; however, but when the construction starts further excavation work will be needed during the earthwork. According to our knowledge at present there are no archaeological remains that could have an influence on the implementation of the project; however, this cannot be guaranteed for the future as well. Any further archaeological excavation requires cut-off walls or piles.

22. Do we have to attend to the remainders of the dismantled building, the loggia and the pillars in the plans or will they be demolished? Have the remainders, basement and foundation, of the former building been left in the earth below ground level?
Having regards to the protection of historic buildings KÖH (Cultural Heritage Protection Authority) insists on utilizing the remainders of the disassembled neo-renaissance loggia at least symbolically.
 
Six arched loggias connected to the firewall of the building under No. 4 Fő utca with stone pillars and chapters, and additional stone pillars above the ceiling where lately a pergola was kept. The dismantled remains are numbered and stored in Kiscelli Museum. (The survey is attached.) For the preservation of historical sites it is desirable that some parts of the dismantled building be reinstated at least symbolically. (This may consist of 2 or 3 arches or even the arched loggias on a single floor only.) 
The remains of the former building are in the property. These are cellars and foundations. The filled-up cellars have already been excavated and filled back by Budapest Historical Museum. It is not necessary to make room for keeping them during planning.
23. Has an analysis of soil mechanics been prepared for the development of the property (with at least three drilling points)? Is this at the disposal of the Issuer-Developer or will that further reduce the approximately two months allocated for the preparation of the preliminary plans (for building permit)?

A detailed analysis of soil mechanics prepared by Petik Árpád, certified building engineer in 1991. The ‘Summary’ of that work has been uploaded to the annexes and it can be downloaded since 3 August 2007. The complete analysis can be viewed in the office of UNIONE-Clark Kft. (Budapest, District I, Lánchíd utca 7-9) from Monday to Friday during business hours.

24. The regulatory plan provided shows the posts for street lighting (black dots). One of these is shown to be within the property at the end of Fő utca. The same light post is not indicated on the utility plan provided (where these posts are marked by small round circles). Is this post within or outside of the property’s boundary?
The place of the light posts is insignificant from the tender competition’s perspective; they can be relocated as desired.
25. Is the current fence closing off the property on the actual boundary of the property?

The exact boundaries of the property are indicated on the attached geodesic survey (legal property boundary). This should be followed.

26. Is the size of the lot 577 or 677 square meters? (It is not or just hardly legible on the site plan provided.)
The area of the lot is 677 square meters.

27. What is indicated by the thick red line or ribbon along the façade of the property under Hunyadi János út 1?

It shows the obligatory building line set by KSZT (in case of demolition for the new building).

28. The particulars of this property and the neighbouring lot suggest as if the two should be treated together. Does the plan prescribe a new building on the neighbouring lot as well?
The subject of this competition is the building to be raised on Lot No. 14337/1. KSZT (District Regulation Plan) neither excludes, nor anticipates raising a new building on the neighbouring lot.
29. This is the only way the requirement of making a the tower-like side projection on the property can be interpreted, as it is also prescribed on the next lot, even though there is no such projection on the existing building. Since the competition pertains only to this property would it not be better to line up the façade and building to the existing adjacent fire wall and building heights identified in the geodesic survey?
See the answer given to Question 1.

30. Can the bidder deviate from the given building heights?

See the answer given to Question 1.

31. Is it possible to deviate from the parameters determining the façade and the volume of the building, which we feel to be inadequate?

See the answer given to Question 1.

32. Is the property’s street front boundary the prescribed building line?

The street front property boundary is not a building line, but a building limit, which determines the construction area. 

33. Does the plan call for a flat or a sloped roof building? In case of a flat roof building can the structure be stepwise terraced? In the latter case is it necessary to stay within the plane set by the P and G data (TKP pyramid)?
See the answer given to Question 1.

34. In Subsection a/2, Section 6, Chapter VI of the attached approximately 200-page District I Building Regulation rather accurate parameters are prescribed for the geometrical determination of the courtyard façade of corner properties (“rear building line”) (at least 6 meters on both property boundaries and not more than 12-meter depth of floor/“building width”). Does the bidder have to comply with this requirement and what is to be done in case of this arched “public land boundary/building line”, is it necessary to draw a concentric arch or curve?
See the answer given to Question 1.

35. Because of the above the 75% building density (80% with allowance) cannot be achieved, since the side boundaries of the property are significantly bigger of the 6 + 12 meters on the above sketch. So building density has a different affect on the geometry of the building resulting in significantly bigger depth of floor. Which requirement should the bidder adhere to?
See the answer given to Question 1.

36. Since the provided sheet of the master plan does not include a legend we ask the Issuer to provide an interpretation of the symbols used (or request the building authority to furnish such interpretation). What is meant by the dotted line following the property boundary in a concentric arch?
The dotted line signifies the place of creating the arcades, however, in that respect the KSZT will be amended, so it does not have to be taken into account. The legend can be found among the annexes.

37. The recently prepared master plan prescribes an arcade on the property; indeed, it prescribes the creation of arcades for the existing buildings on both adjacent properties as well. Is it necessary to meet this requirement, for it is highly unlikely that anyone could oblige the relevant condominium buildings (one of them is a historical building too) to have that carried out?
See the answer given to Question 36.

38. In the tender the bidder has to specify floor data and examine whether the building designed by the bidder complies with the requested floor area limits. We request guidance from the Issuer or the building authority as to how the floor area of the planned elevator garage is to be calculated. Shall we take the floor area of the silo only, or shall we include the total area of the parking plates, or the total area of all floors?
The notions of ‘floor area’ (“szintterület”) and ‘building floor’ (“építményszint”) shall be interpreted according to Annex 1 to OTÉK (National City Regulation and Development Requirements), while the notion of ‘gross floor area of the building’ (“épület bruttó szintterülete”) shall be understood according to Article 3.2 of BVKSZ. ‘Walking level’ (“járószint”) shall mean ‘floor level’ (“padlószint”), which does not include the ‘whole’ (“lyuk”).

39. According to our preliminary calculations we fear that the issued program does not fit within the cubature determined using the prescribed building ratios. Can the bidder reduce the floor are set forth in the program? Which elements must be kept under any circumstance? (Number of rooms or parking places, etc.)
The given design program corresponds to the ratios presented in the tender invitation (which the answers given to these questions also form part of).

40. What does it mean that in amidst historic surroundings a “landmark” building is to be designed?

By “landmark building” the Issuer means a building with unique attraction and character that markedly reflects the spirit of the given location.

41. In light of the task we find the 4th paragraph of Section 2.1 controversial, for according to that a “landmark” building must be designed, which nevertheless fits well into its surroundings. A tower, a pavilion, Sikló, the tunnel or the bridge are landmarks with their strong shapes, however, the neo-renaissance body of the city with its clearly cut blocks is about coordinative relations. This property is now a stigma. We ask the Issuer to decide whether landmark or fitting and harmony is desired.
The two expectations do not contradict each other. One of the objectives of the competition is that the bidders should find an architectural solution that meets both requirements.

42. In our view the landscaping requested in the invitation exceeds beyond the limits of the tender competition. If these items are really to be elaborated, we ask the Issuer to furnish detailed geodesic and botanical surveys and data on traffic load, moreover, give an accurate description of the City's or the District's idea or program with respect of the management and development of the area described in points a, b, and c.
The hotel to be built may have an affect on the surroundings indicated under points a, b and c; therefore the bidders must give a proposal for the developments of the areas listed on the level of ideas (detailed figures are not needed).

43. Is there any agreement between the Issuer and the District with respect to the underground parking lot to be created in public land (Lánchíd köz and vicinity) suggested by the tender invitation and the building on the property? Is that perhaps the only way to produce the parking balance required for the building permit?
There is no agreement, but there is a chance to build underground parking lots on public land between Lánchíd utca and the embankment (rakpart), which can also be taken into consideration to secure parking spaces for the planned hotel.

44. What should be the capacity of the underground parking lot described in Section 2.3.2? Could a separate traffic lane be cut off from the park to build the necessary ramps and service road? If it were necessary, could the bidder suggest another traffic light controlled junction between Lánchíd köz and Clark Ádám tér “on the level of ideas” in order to secure traffic to and from the referenced underground parking?
The capacity is determined by the prescribed requirements and the geometric features. The traffic control changes needed for the underground parking lot can be resolved with a single junction. There is no need to create a traffic light controlled junction.
45. Is it possible, or necessary to erect a pavilion or building between the embankment (rakpart) and Lánchíd utca, furthermore, are the contours and building lines shown on the site plan valid? Is it really to be built on Lánchíd köz? What façade or building height is to be made? What should be its function?
It is up to the bidder’s discretion. This can be resolved on the level of ideas in line with the relevant KÉSZ (District Regulation Rules) rules.

46. Are two car lifts needed for traffic in case of this corner property? Does the Issuer have the purchase/installation of any specific type of elevator or system in mind? The two elevators are two moving manipulators with a single street entry point or two independent street entry points are needed with a double elevator shaft?
Two car lifts are to be created to provide access to the underground parking within the property, each of which should accommodate a vehicle not longer than 5.2 m, higher than 180 cm and wider than 2.1 m. We are looking for a safe solution with independently moving elevators without unnecessary surplus expenditure.

47. Are the car lift and the garage are reserved for the guests so they have to check in first and use the system with a card for example or will it be public and independent from the hotel, so the guests could perhaps pay separately at the customary ticket machine there for parking?

The underground parking is not public.

48. If it is necessary to check in at the reception before parking, how many parking spots must be secured for guests arriving by car in front of the entrance and the reception area? Is there any such traffic plan? 
There is no such traffic plan, but room has to be made for two cars for short stopping in front of the entrance or its vicinity.

49. What is the desired floor space of the basement level storage referred to in the layout within the 100 square meters? What is to be stored here? Are these spaces to be provided in addition to the storage facilities shown on the ground level layout?
The distribution of the maximum 100-square meter storage area is up to the planner, preferably it should be proportional. For the storage of dry goods (such as tables and chairs) and luggage room (on the ground level).

50. What was meant by the Issuer by asking not to make the wellness control rooms feminine? Shall the services be provided for both sexes in the area? Shall the two sexes use the premises together, alternatively or simultaneously? Perhaps with unmarked separate control rooms? What is meant by “showers that can be used from both sides”?
The word ‘feminine’ refers to the appearance of such characteristics. Its interpretation is up to the planner. Coed service is always to be understood according to general norms.

51. What equipment and space requirement does “basic fitness” assume? What is the mass of equipment to be installed?
These particulars are clearly indicated in the tender invitation. The exact machine schedule will be determined in a later phase of the construction.

52. Can the offices be located on the level above the ground floor, or they must definitely be close to the reception and on the same level? 
Offices should be close to the reception as much as possible, however, they can also be divided so that not less than 40% of the office space would be located close to the reception.

53. What freight traffic is expected at the service entrance? Is there a truck fleet given for the described hotel and restaurant types? Does the bidder have to do the sizing for regular trucks, or it is sufficient to make room for passenger car sized pick up trucks and larger vehicles will park on the sidewalk?
The typical size of the vehicle used by the suppliers is a 3.5 t truck or smaller, divided roughly 30% to 70%.

54. What “other customary rooms” are needed in addition to the reception and the luggage room? 
Based on customary hotel design experience.

55. Is a central safe needed or safes will be provided for each room, say in the desk or dressing table? 
We recommend a safe for each room.

56. Shall the luggage room be part of the basement storage facilities or room has to be made for it next to the reception? How big shall be its floor area?
The luggage room must be close to the reception with not more than 7 square meters of floor space.

57. Shall the shops open to the street or the lobby? 
According to the invitation this is up to the designer taking the emphasis on the appearance of the façade into account.

58. What acoustic characteristics should the wall between the rooms have? Is there any relevant special requirement for this type of hotel? 

Powerful and cost-efficient sound proofing is desired.

59. How many stars will the hotel have?

Because of her nature Hotel Boutique has no star classification. In terms of quality she will definitely be five-star or above.

60. Are the roof restaurant and the restaurant to be located on the ground floor alternatives of each other or both are to be created? Is there any difference in terms of quality and service? Will they have a common kitchen or separate kitchens are needed?
These are two entirely separate restaurants and both are to be realized.

61. Can the guests of the roof restaurant use the hotel elevator or the two types of guests must be separated? In the latter case how does the hotel guest access the restaurant?
The roof restaurant must be accessible independently from the reception and by the hotel guests as well.

62. Is it necessary to create an open kitchen and a back kitchen or the visitor should have a view of the entire kitchen like in case of fast-food chains? In that case would the food-prep section and dishwashers be also visible? Do the rules require separate rooms for the number of portions mentioned anyway?
The appearance of the open kitchen should be made according to reasonable criteria.

63. The 150-180 square meter area mentioned is only for the kitchen, or it includes the lockers, storage facilities, food prep areas and dishwashers as well. 
The size of the total operational area is the referenced 150-180 square meters.

64. Is there any definite room scheme or furnishing standard? What should be size of the bed(s)? Are desk-dressing table, separate wardrobe, bidet, TV, individually controlled air-condition, etc. necessary?
There is no fixed room layout. The not less than 60 rooms are to be created on a high level according to five-star standards with modern appearance and technology.

65. Does “Boutique Hotel” or “Nobu” restaurant have a strict standard or it is sufficient for the bidder to follow the norms laid down by the tender invitation and the two institutions will flexibly adapt to and occupy the space to be created?

The Boutique Hotel is a category, so, please, adhere to the norms set by the tender invitation.

66. What does “complete planning license” mean among the eligibility criteria? Is grade É1 sufficient or TR1 and TT1 licenses are also needed for the public area tasks implicitly defined in the tender invitation?
The notion of “complete planning license” for construction should be understood according to Government Decree 103 of 2004 (April 28). (A senior planner with É1 classification is automatically qualified.)

67. The dwg files provided do not include ground objects and part of the buildings on the desired street view (Várhegy, Danube, Alagút, Sikló and Lánchíd utca building block). Can these be individually illustrated, or that might conflict with confidentiality? Alternatively, we ask for these elements to be attached.
They can be individually illustrated without harm to confidentiality.

68. The digital design sheets to be submitted on CD should be inserted within or outside of the confidential envelope? If the CD is not inserted in the envelope, how should it be labelled and packaged? What file extensions should be used? How shall the Issuer and the Evaluation Committee ensure that the file information attached to the files is not in conflict with the confidentiality requirement?
The CD to be submitted includes all design sheets in digital format (amending Section 2.4.2 of the tender invitation). This shall be put in a separate white and sealed postal envelope. (The other sealed envelop will contain the bidder’s particulars, etc.)

The files on the CD should have pdf extension and should be printable. Please, leave file properties (author, address and subject, etc.) blank.

69. Precisely which pictures provided in the annex should be used to prepare the part of the work included under Section 2.4.2/8 of the Design Competition Document (there are several similar photographs).

They can be chosen freely; however, at least two daytime views are needed. Additional photographs have been included in the annexes.
70. We did not find a night picture among the attached photographs for the night view to be submitted according to Section 2.4.2/9 of the Design Competition Document, which the hotel would fit into. Can this be supplemented?

The missing digital night-time photographs have also been uploaded to the annexes, they can be downloaded from there. 

71. According to Section 2.2.2 of the Design Competition Document the KSZT indicators can be required to be met up to the BVKSZ limit. Is our understanding that this means an 80% building density and not more than a 5.0 floor area index (when justified) correct?
See the answer given to Question 1.

72. Do we have to include the wellness section to be located on level -1 (-2) in the building density?

Should the floor areas according to Article 3(2) of BVKSZ be included in the calculation?

73. Can a roof garden be included as part of the 15% green area requirement?

The relevant chapter of BVKSZ is applicable for the development of green areas.

74. Can building density below ground level be 100%? (Is our understanding correct that the dotted red line drawn in parallel with the lot boundary 5 meters away from it is not the building line, but the line for the arcade to be designed?)
Yes.

75. How many stars the hotel to be designed will have?

This hotel is a Boutique Hotel, which corresponds to the five-star standard.

76. Are the 70 employees of the two restaurants and the 30 hotel staff members to be understood for a single shift (concurrent) for the purpose of sizing the locker rooms? 
35 employees per shift for the two restaurants and 15 hotel staff should be considered for the calculation.

77. Are all the rooms to be developed according to the same standard or different views and room rates are possible (internal courtyard/rooms with a castle view)?

The rooms will be equally high level. The room rates for second (US) floor courtyard room should obviously differ from exclusive higher level rooms’ rates.
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